City of Seattle Invitation to Bid FA0-4884
Addendum 

Updated on: 09/20/2019

The following is additional information regarding Invitation to Bid/Request for Proposal #FA0-4884 titled Civic Campus Security Services released on 08/30/2019.  The due date and time for responses has been changed to 09/26/2019 4:00PM (Pacific).  This addendum includes both questions from prospective proposers and the City’s answers and revisions to the ITB. This addendum is hereby made part of the ITB and therefore, the information contained herein shall be taken into consideration when preparing and submitting a bid/proposal.
	Item #
	Date Received
	Date Answered
	Vendor’s Question
	City’s Answer
	RFP Revisions

	1
	08/30/2019
	09/12/2019
	Who is the current incumbent?
	Allied Universal Security 
	

	2
	08/30/2019
	09/12/2019
	When was the current incumbent awarded the contract?
	Universal has had the contract from 09/25/2015 when they purchased Olympic Security Services. Olympic held the contact from 11/01/2014.
	

	3
	08/30/2019
	09/12/2019
	What is the current bill rate?
	Site Manager: $44.01
Assistant Site Manager: $36.29

Security Officers: $28.65

Screeners: $25.86
	

	4
	08/30/2019
	09/12/2019
	Are there any additional services that may be needed that are not listed in the RFP? IE Additional sites, seasonal required training etc.
	No, however on call services may be requested. Please see section 14 of FAS Security Guard Scope.
	

	5
	08/30/2019
	09/12/2019
	Is there any minimum wage/pay?
	Yes 
	

	6
	08/30/2019
	09/12/2019
	Is there any prevailing wage, living wage ordinance, state or local mandated wage, contract specific wage, or collective bargaining agreement?
	No Prevailing Wage requirement. See Page 19, Attachment 2 Sample Contract, Page 20 item 72 for City of Seattle Minimum Wage requirements. See Page 5, Section 5 for Labor Harmony Agreement requirement. There is no mandated Collective Bargaining Agreement requirement.
	

	7
	08/30/2019
	09/12/2019
	Is a Bid Bond required?

a) If yes, how much?

b) How often / how many times have you assessed liquidated damages, if applicable?
	No. Liquidated damages have never been assessed.
	

	8
	08/30/2019
	09/12/2019
	If awarded, will a Performance Bond be required? If yes, how much?
	No.
	

	9
	08/30/2019
	09/12/2019
	If awarded, will a Payment Bond be required? If yes, how much?
	No
	

	10
	09/06/2019
	09/12/2019
	Are we required to pay our security officers for Seattle holiday?
	Yes, when they work on the holiday.
	

	11
	09/06/2019
	09/12/2019
	Is a vehicle currently being used and it is required for this bid?
	No
	

	12
	09/06/2019
	09/12/2019
	Regarding Armed Officers, how will this service be utilized within the scope of this RFP?
	There are no current requirements. If the city does require armed services, the company must honor the rates provided under this RFP. This service may be required in case of an increased security threat to any of the building specified under this RFP.
	

	13
	09/06/2019
	09/12/2019
	Are there any weapons specifications that are or will be defined for the Armed Officers?
	No specific weapons requirements.
	

	14
	09/06/2019
	09/12/2019
	Is there a vehicle requirement that can be foreseen within the scope of this RFP?
	Yes, but it would be requested as additional services. The current scope of work does not require a vehicle. 
	

	15
	09/06/2019
	09/12/2019
	Regarding background checks required by the city, can you provide the cost that the contractor will incur per check and the estimated turnaround time for the results?
	CJIS Background is required by Seattle Police Department (SPD). The turnaround time for the results is 1 to 3 weeks. The cost associated with the background is the cost of the fingerprints which is $32.00 (Cash Only). 
	

	16
	09/06/2019
	09/12/2019
	Is a Physical Exam required for each person assigned under this RFP to demonstrate requirements under paragraph 1.4?  If so, are costs transferable to the city?
	Not required by the city however the company must guarantee that the employee is fit for duty under those specifications.
	

	17
	09/06/2019
	09/12/2019
	The RFP identifies contractor-supplied Equipment. Is there any equipment items the incumbent has incorporated that would be useful to include?
	There is no extra equipment that the incumbent has provided.
	

	18
	09/06/2019
	09/12/2019
	Are there any posts that are not self-relieving that require staff beyond those listed
	There are only 3 posts that are self-relieving on certain days. All other posts require the relief of another officer. Please see FAS Guard Scope for detail. 
	

	19
	09/09/2019
	09/12/2019
	We note that RFP Section 5 “Contract Term” on page 6 permits the Vendor to opt out of the renewal period on at least 120 days’ notice prior to the renewal date. However, Section 2 of the Contract which addresses term and termination states that only the City may opt out of the renewal term. Will the City revise the contract provision to align with the RFP provision in that regard?
	Yes
	

	20
	09/09/2019
	09/12/2019
	Will the City revise Contract Section 65.B on page 17 to give the Contractor the reciprocal right to terminate the contract for convenience at any time on 120 days’ prior written notice?
	No
	

	21
	09/09/2019
	09/20/2019
	We note that the indemnification provision stated in Contract Section 40 on page 12 Exhibit C Article VII Section 7.1 on page 11 requires the Contractor to indemnify the City for the City’s contributory negligence. Our company stands behind our services and regularly accepts the obligation to indemnify clients for any losses, costs or damages that are caused by the negligent acts or omissions of our personnel in the performance of security services under client agreements. However, we cannot indemnify a client for any losses, costs or damages that are caused by the client’s own negligence. Will the City revise the cited section to delete the word “sole” from line 7?
	Not at this time.
	

	22
	09/09/2019
	09/12/2019
	We note that Attachment #1 requires the Vendor to carry $1 million of Technology Errors and Omission Insurance. Our company does not carry that coverage because it applies to software development and does not apply to the security services industry. Will the City delete that requirement?
	It reads: Technology Errors and Omission Insurance/Professional Liability insurance. Either or will suffice Professional Liability may also be met through a combination of underlying CGL policy and an Umbrella/Excess policy, if needed.
	

	23
	09/09/2019
	09/12/2019
09/20/2019

Revised
	We note that the City requires that its rights as an additional insured shall extend to the full coverage limits, whether such limits, are primary excess, contingent or otherwise. See Contract Section 42.3, second sentence on page 13; Attachment #1 Terms and Conditions Section 2, second sentence. We respectfully request deletion of the cited sentence from each section because we submit that the obligation stated therein places an undue burden on large companies.  Our company is a national security service provider with thousands of clients and over $7 billion in revenues. We maintain insurance limits that are commensurate with our size and scope of operations. This requirement may appear facially fair, but in effect it compels big firms to provide much larger amounts of insurance. Although each bidder may offer the specified insurance coverage, in the case of a large bidder, the City would be getting access to tens of millions more insurance than it would from other smaller bidders. Such a result is unfair. That requirement also effectively precludes us from accessing any portion of our insurance to satisfy other claims from time to time. However, we appreciate the City’s desire for additional coverage, and therefore we propose a compromise whereby the City will forego access to our entire tower of insurance by deletion of the cited sentence from each section in exchange for the following higher specified insurance limits: All Commercial General Liability limits on Attachment #1 will be increased to $10,000,000; and Auto Liability limits will be increased to $2,000,000 CSL. Is the proposed compromise acceptable?
	Delete

Minimum limits of Liability can be met through the combination of underlying CGL policy and an Umbrella/Excess policy, if needed
	See Contract Section 42.3, second sentence on page 13; Attachment #1 Terms and Conditions Section 2, Delete: “Where required to be an additional insured, the City of Seattle shall be so for the full limits of insurance coverage required by Vendor, whether such limits are primary, excess, contingent or otherwise”
Also Change Minimum limits of Liability to read: 

$10M each occurrence

$1M each accident Employer’s Liability and delete Products/Completed Operations Aggregate and change Auto Liability limit to $2M (from $1M).

See Revised Insurance Transmittal below.
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	24
	09/09/2019
	09/20/2019
	We note that the City requires to be made an additional insured on the Contractor’s insurance policies per Contract Section 42.2 on page 13 and Attachment #1 Terms and Conditions Section 1. Our company routinely adds clients as additional insureds on our insurance policies, so long as our obligations are aligned with our indemnification obligations and limited to the specified insurance limits we have agreed to provide. Will the City revise the cited sections as follows to reflect that standard?

Contract Section 42.2 on page 13: Insert the following at the end of the sentence:

 “  to the extent of the Contractor’s indemnification obligations and up to the required insurance coverage amount.”
Attachment #1 Terms and Conditions Section 1.

Insert the following at the end of the sentence:

“…to the extent of the Contractor’s indemnification obligations and up to the required insurance coverage amount.”
	Not at this time.
	

	25
	09/09/2019
	09/20/2019
	We assume that the Contractor’s compliance with the criminal background adjudication standards in Attachment #2 Section 1.3 on page should be in accordance with applicable law. Title VII of the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 prohibits employment discrimination.  In interpreting Title VII, EEOC Enforcement Guidance 915.002 (4/25/12) prohibits blanket exclusions based on a class of crime. The Guidance requires assessment of the facts and circumstances of a conviction to determine whether it truly renders a person unsuitable for the position for which he or she is intended. Will the City revise the cited section to achieve compliance with applicable law by adding the following as the last paragraph?

“Contractor’s and City’s determination regarding the suitability of any Security Guard described above for assignment to a City location shall be based on guidance provided by the U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission regarding the use of criminal arrest and conviction history in employment decisions which requires a weighing of (a) the nature and gravity of the offense or conduct; (b) the time that has passed since the offense or conduct or the employee’s completion of any sentence given as a result of the offense; and (c) the nature of the job held or sought.”
	No, the City will use Recommended State Sanctions to determine length of time that must pass before an applicant or licensee can re-apply for licensure. See link below.

https://www.dol.wa.gov/business/securityguards/docs/dateofconvictionsanctions.pdf 
	

	26
	09/09/2019
	Answer Pending
	We assume that the Contractor’s compliance with the fitness standards in Attachment #2 Section 1.4 on pages 1-2 and Attachment #2 Section 5.1.11 on page 9 should also be in accordance with applicable law, including the Americans with Disabilities Act. Will the City revise the cited sections as follows to achieve compliance with applicable law?

Attachment #2 Section 1.4 on pages 1-2:

On line 2, insert the following after the word “capabilities”:

“…to the extent those are job-related and consistent with business necessity.”

Attachment #2 Section 5.1.11 on page 9:

Insert the following as the last sentence:

“Anything to the contrary notwithstanding, the foregoing requirements shall apply to the extent job-related and consistent with business necessity.”
	
	

	27
	09/09/2019
	09/11/2019
	Attachment #2 Section 13 on page 19 lists numerous types of “on call” services that must be provided “in a very short time depending on the amount of coverage.”

•
Please provide more detailed service level expectations.

•
Please clarify the extent to which “on call” services may be billed at overtime rates.
	Requirements are unknown and will be requested as needed. The company must guarantee that they can provide the on-call services as requested in the RFP. 

Services will be paid at straight rates by the City. It is the company’s responsibility to maintain adequate levels of staff in order to manage the OT budget. 
	

	28
	09/09/2019
	09/11/2019
	We note the parameters on price increases in Contract Section 11 “Requests for Price Increases” on page 5. Will the City grant additional increases to recoup increases in: (1) statutorily mandated costs, such as but not limited to expansion of benefits under the City’s Paid Sick Time and Safe Time ordinance, which are not strictly wage related and/or exceed increases in the CPI-U; and (2) increases in union costs which are not strictly wage related and/or exceed increases in the CPI-U?
	The Buyer may exempt request for price increases/decreases for extraordinary conditions that could not have been known by either party at the time of bid or other circumstances beyond the control of both parties, as determined in the opinion of the Buyer.
	

	29
	09/20/2019
	09/20/2019
	City Initiated
	
	See Page 1 Closing Date and Time and Sealed Bid Due to the City: Revise due date to read 09/26//2019; 4:00PM
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CITY PURCHASING 			REF: RFP# FA)-4884

City of Seattle			Attachment #1



This Insurance Requirements and Transmittal Form shall serve as an attachment and/or exhibit form to the       (“Contract”), and shall be interpreted and applied together as a single contractual instrument between the City of Seattle (“City”) and       (“Vendor”).







VENDOR: SEND THIS FORM TO YOUR INSURANCE PROFESSIONAL TO COMPLETE THE GREEN BOX AND TO ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH ALL THE COVERAGE REQUIREMENTS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS REQUIRED BY THE CITY OF SEATTLE.

INSURANCE AGENT/BROKER: 

 PLEASE COMPLETE THESE FIELDS SO THAT WE MAY CONTACT YOU IF NECESSARY.                 *REQUIRED FIELDS

	*NAME:      			TITLE:      

	*NAME OF COMPANY         

	*EMAIL:      		*TELEPHONE:      		FAX:        

 SEND ORIGINAL CERTIFICATION WITH COPY OF CGL ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT OR BLANKET ADDITIONAL   INSURED POLICY WORDING AND APPLICABLE ENDORSEMENTS THAT EVIDENCES THE COVERAGE REQUIRED TO:		THE CITY OF SEATTLE PURCHASING SERVICES DIVISION

              ATTN: David Stubblefield		 

	PO Box 94687

              SEATTLE, WA 98124-4678



1. In the “Certificate Holder” field of the certificate of insurance, write “Attention: City of Seattle.” 

2. Upon award of the Contract, Vendor shall, at its sole expense and for the entire term of the Contract, provide insurance coverage to the City of Seattle (“City”) as checked below within 15 days or the City may withdraw its intent to award:

·  COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY (CGL), MARINE GENERAL LIABILITY (MGL) OR EQUIVALENT INCLUDING: 

	 PREMISES 

	 PRODUCTS-COMPLETED OPERATIONS 

	 CONTRACTUAL LIABILITY  

	 STOP GAP/EMPLOYER’S LIABILITY (UNLESS NO OBLIGATION TO INSURE WA STATE WC)

[bookmark: Check72] |_|  XCU AND SUBSIDENCE PERILS NOT EXCLUDED

 |_| PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPNS. ADD’L INSURED FOR THREE (3) YEARS FOLLOWING END OF CONTRACT

· MINIMUM LIMITS OF LIABILITY SHALL BE:   

		  $10,000,000

		EACH OCCURRENCE COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT BODILY INJURY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE (CSL)



		    $1,000,000   

		EACH ACCIDENT/ DISEASE—POLICY LIMIT/ DISEASE—EACH EMPLOYEE STOP GAP/EMPLOYER’S LIABILITY 





·  BUSINESS AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR OWNED, NON-OWNED, LEASED AND HIRED VEHICLES AS APPROPRIATE written on a form CA 00 01 or equivalent WITH MINIMUM LIMITS OF LIABILITY OF $2,000,000 CSL.

· NOTE: GARAGE LIABILITY WITH APPROPRIATE COVERAGES AND LIMITS OF LIABILITY MAY SUBSTITUTE FOR CGL AND AUTOMOBILE INSURANCE:

·   |_| Garage Keeper’s Legal Liability (GKLL) insurance to cover vehicles in vendor’s bailment.  Minimum limit of liability of   		 $        each vehicle and $       each occurrence.   

·        |_| “On-Hook” GKLL coverage required with minimum limit of liability of $      each vehicle.

|_| IN-TRANSIT POLLUTION LIABILITY CA 99 48/MCS-90 (N/A IF COVERED UNDER AN IN-TRANSIT EXTENSION OF     A CONTRACTOR’S POLLUTION LIABILITY INSURANCE POLICY)

· [bookmark: rcw"51"]  WORKER'S COMPENSATION INSURANCE FOR WASHINGTON STATE AS REQUIRED BY TITLE 51 RCW.

	|_|  UMBRELLA/EXCESS/BUMBERSHOOT LIABILITY INSURANCE OVER CGL/MGL/AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY  

MINIMUM LIMIT OF LIABILITY SHALL BE |_| $      CSL ($      MINIMUM TOTAL LIMITS REQUIREMENT)

|_|   CONTRACTOR’S POLLUTION LIABILITY INSURANCE. MINIMUM LIMITS OF LIABILITY SHALL BE |_| $1,000,000 |_| $      EACH CLAIM WITH A MINIMUM AGGREGATE LIMIT OF 200% OF THE EACH CLAIM LIMIT.  THERE SHALL BE NO REQUIREMENT FOR A DEDICATED PROJECT AGGREGATE LIMIT PROVIDED THAT THE CONTRACTOR SHALL (1) SUBMIT TO THE CITY WITH ITS INSURANCE CERTIFICATION A WRITTEN STATEMENT FROM ITS AUTHORIZED INSURANCE REPRESENTATIVE THAT THE FULL MINIMUM AGGREGATE LIMIT IS AVAILABLE AND HAS NOT BEEN IMPAIRED BY ANY CLAIMS RESERVED ON ANOTHER PROJECT, AND (2) THEREAFTER, UNTIL THE COMPLETION OF THE WORK, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE NOTICE IN WRITING TO THE CITY WITHIN TEN (10) DAYS OF CONTRACTOR’S CONSTRUCTIVE KNOWLEDGE OF ANY PENDING OR ACTUAL IMPAIRMENT OF THE AGGREGATE LIMIT.

 |_|  AVIATION LIABILITY INSURANCE WITH MINIMUM LIMITS OF |_|$1,000,000 CSL OR |_| $      CSL

 |X|  PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE WITH MINIMUM LIMIT OF LIABILITY $1,000,000 EACH CLAIM

 	 |_|  WATERCRAFT/P&I LIABILITY INSURANCE WITH MINIMUM LIMITS OF LIABILITY $     

 |_|  SHIP REPAIRER’S OR MARINA OPERATOR’S LEGAL LIABILITY INSURANCE COVERING THE VENDOR’S LIABILITY FOR LOSS OR DAMAGE, INCLUDING LOSS OF USE, TO OWNERS OF WATERCRAFT WHILE IN THE VENDOR’S CARE, CUSTODY AND CONTROL FOR THE PURPOSE OF BEING REPAIRED OR SERVICED.  

	MINIMUM LIMITS OF LIABILITY SHALL BE $      EACH VESSEL

|_|  TOWER’S LEGAL LIABILITY INSURANCE 
Any tower hired by the Vendor or any subcontractor shall carry for any tow of the vessel within    ……. Such insurance limits shall be for not less than the portion of the Total Contract Price allocable to such vessel (and in no event less than the replacement cost for such vessel), to cover loss, damage and/or expense to the City of Seattle arising out of such towage.

|_|   JONES ACT LIABILITY WITH MINIMUM LIMITS  |_| $1,000,000 OR $     .

|_|   U.S.L. & H. LIABILITY INSURANCE WITH MINIMUM LIMITS OF LIABILITY $     

|X|   CRIME FIDELITY, THEFT, DISAPPEARANCE & DESTRUCTION LIABILITY (TO INCLUDE EMPLOYEE THEFT, WIRE TRANSFER, FORGERY & MAIL COVERAGE, AND CLIENT COVERAGE): WITH MINIMUM LIMIT $250,000 PER OCCURRENCE AND IN THE AGGREGATE. The policy shall cover “client’s property,” not just when legally liable and shall have a Joint Loss Payee Endorsement in favor of the City of Seattle.

|_|   TECHNOLOGY ERRORS & OMISSION / PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE WITH AN AGGREGATE LIMIT OF LIABILITY NOT LESS THAN $      MILLION DOLLARS ($250,000).  Such insurance shall cover any and all errors, omissions or negligent acts in the delivery or performance of products, services and/or licensed programs under this agreement. Such Professional Liability insurance shall include coverage for claims and losses with respect to network risks (such as data breaches, unauthorized access/use, identity theft, invasion of privacy, damage/loss/theft of or to data, degradation, downtime, etc.) and intellectual property infringement, such as copyrights, trademarks, service marks and trade dress.  The Professional Liability Insurance retroactive coverage date shall be no later than the effective date of this agreement. Suppler/Vendor shall continuously maintain such insurance or purchase an extended reporting period providing that claims first made and reported to the insurance company within three (3) years after termination of the agreement will be deemed to have been made during the policy period.

|_|   INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY –CYBER LIABILITY (NETWORK SECURITY LIABILITY AND PRIVACY LIABILITY) WITH MINIMUM LIMIT $      PER OCCURRENCE AND IN THE AGGREGATE.  This shall include, but not be limited to, coverage for any actual or alleged breach of duty, neglect, error, act, mistake, omission, or failure arising out of Vendor’s Internet and Network Activities including coverage for, but not limited to, the following events:

An attack that has the intent to affect, alter, copy, corrupt, destroy, disrupt, damage, or provide unauthorized access or unauthorized use of Vendor’s computer system; Computer Crime or Information Theft; Denial of Service; Extortion; Introduction, implantation, or spread of a Computer Virus; Loss of Service; Identity Theft; Infringement; Electronic data loss and restoration; Unauthorized Access or Use, including the gaining of access to Vendor’s computer systems by an unauthorized person or persons or an authorized person in an unauthorized manner.

|_| SUBLIMIT FOR NOTIFICATION COSTS: $      PER OCCURRENCE

[bookmark: Check61].|_|   OTHER:        WITH MINIMUM LIMIT $       



TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

1. City of Seattle as Additional Insured: The CGL/MGL insurance shall include “the City of Seattle” as an additional insured for primary and non-contributory limits of liability.



2. No Limitation of Liability: Insurance coverage and limits of liability as specified herein are minimum coverage and limit of liability requirements only; they shall not be construed to limit the liability of Vendor or any insurer for any claim that is required to be covered hereunder to less than the applicable limits of liability stated in the declarations. Moreover, the City shall be an additional insured, where additional insured status is required, for the full available limits of liability maintained by vendor, whether those limits are primary, excess, contingent or otherwise. Vendor expressly understands and agrees that this provision shall override any limitation of liability or similar provision in any agreement or statement of work between the City and Vendor.



3. Required Separation of Insured Provision; Cross-Liability Exclusion and other Endorsements Prohibited: Vendor’s insurance policy shall include a “separation of insureds” or “severability” clause that applies coverage separately to each insured and additional insured, except with respect to the limits of the insurer’s liability. Vendor’s insurance policy shall not contain any provision, exclusion or endorsement that limits, bars, or effectively precludes the City of Seattle from coverage or asserting a claim under the Vendor’s insurance policy on the basis that the coverage or claim is brought by an insured or additional insured against an insured or additional insured under the policy. Vendor’s CGL policy shall NOT include any of the following Endorsements (or their equivalent endorsement or exclusions): (a) Contractual Liability Limitation, (CGL Form 21 39 or equivalent), b) Amendment Of Insured Contract Definition, (CGL Form 24 26 or equivalent),  (c) Limitation of Coverage to Designated Premises or Project, (CGL Form 21 44 or equivalent), (d) any endorsement modifying or deleting the exception to the Employer’s Liability exclusion, (e) any “Insured vs. Insured” or “cross-liability” exclusion, and (f) any type of punitive, exemplary or multiplied damages exclusion. Vendor’s failure to comply with any of the requisite insurance provisions shall be a material breach of, and grounds for, the immediate termination of the Contract with the City of Seattle; or if applicable, and at the discretion of the City of Seattle, shall serve as grounds for the City to procure or renew insurance coverage with any related costs of premiums to be repaid by Vendor or reduced and/or offset against the Contract. 



4. Claims Made Form: If any policy is written on a claims made form, the retroactive date shall be prior to or coincident with the effective date of this contract. Claims made coverage shall be maintained by the Vendor for a minimum of three (3) years following the expiration or earlier termination of this contract, and the Vendor shall provide the City with evidence of insurance for each annual renewal. If renewal of the claims made form of coverage becomes unavailable or economically prohibitive, the Vendor shall purchase an extended reporting period (“tail”) or execute another form of guarantee acceptable to the City to assure financial responsibility for liability assumed under the contract.



5. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions:  Any self-insurance retention or deductible in excess of $ 25,000 that is not “fronted” by an insurer and for which claims the vendor, or its third-party administrator is directly responsible for defending and indemnifying must be disclosed on the certificate of liability insurance. Vendor agrees to defend and indemnify the City under its self-insured or deductible layer and upon City’s request advise the full delivery address of the individual or department to whom a tender of a claim should be directed.   



6. Notice of Cancellation:   Under RCW 48.18.290 (“Cancellation by insurer”) applicable to insurers licensed to do business in the State of Washington, the City, as a certificate holder for the insurance requirements specified herein and an additional insured, has an interest in any loss which may occur; written notice of cancellation must therefore be actually delivered or mailed to the City not less than 45 days prior to cancellation (10 days as respects non-payment of premium). As respects surplus lines placements, written notice of cancellation shall be delivered not less than 30 days prior to cancellation (10 days as respects non-payment of premium).



7. Qualification of Insurers:  Insurers shall maintain A.M. Best’s ratings of A- VII unless procured as a surplus lines placement under RCW chapter 48.15, or as may otherwise be approved by the City.



8. Changes in Insurance Requirements: The City shall have the right to periodically review the adequacy of coverages and/or limits of liability in view of inflation and/or a change in loss exposures and shall have the right to require an increase in such coverages and/or limits upon ninety (90) days prior written notice to the Vendor. Should Vendor, despite its best efforts, be unable to maintain any required insurance coverage or limit of liability due to deteriorating insurance market conditions, it may upon thirty (30) days prior written notice request a waiver of any insurance requirement, which request shall not be unreasonably denied.



9. Evidence of Insurance:  Vendor must provide the following evidence of insurance:

a. A certificate of liability insurance evidencing coverages, limits of liability and other terms and conditions as specified herein;

b. An attached City of Seattle designated additional insured endorsement or blanket additional insured wording to the CGL/MGL (and if required Contractor’s Pollution Liability insurance policy).

c. A copy of all other amendatory policy endorsements or exclusions of Vendor’s insurance CGL/MGL policy that evidences the coverage required.



At any time upon the City’s request, Vendor shall also cause to be timely furnished a copy of declarations pages and schedules of forms and endorsements. In the event that the City tenders a claim or lawsuit for defense and indemnity invoking additional insured status, and the insurer either denies the tender or issues a reservation of rights letter, Vendor shall also cause a complete and certified copy of the requested policy to be timely furnished to the City.



Send evidence of insurance to the City at the addresses at the top of this form. 

For questions or issues about insurance, contact the City of Seattle Risk Management at (206) 615-1507. 





NOTE: CERTIFICATES WITHOUT ATTACHED ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT OR BLANKET ADDITIONAL INSURED COVERAGE FOR THE CITY OF SEATTLE WILL NOT BE APPROVED!
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